
p g .  1   A g e n d a  J a n  1 6 ,  2 0 2 4  R e g u l a r  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g

 AGENDA 

FOR THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 

TUESDAY, January 16, 2024 
TIME: 6: 30 p.m. 

THERE WILL BE A WORKSHOP BEGINNING AT 6:00PM 
LOCATION: IN PERSON AT CITY HALL or TELECONFERENCE/VIDEO CONFERENCING LINE 

Phone Number: 1-408-418-9388 
Meeting Link: https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php? 
MTID=mbc8920b66dc6b262b557723d050a5ae6 
Meeting number: 182 229 9375 
Meeting password: D4gxVSXpz84 (34498797 from phones and video systems) 

1) CALL TO ORDER:
2) PLEDGE TO FLAG:
3) ROLL CALL:
4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
5) MAYOR’S REPORT:
6) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS:

a) City Administrator:
b) Clerk’s Report: Financial Report attached in Minutes

7) DEPARTMENT REPORTS:
a) Water Report: Attached in Packet
b) EMS Report
c) VPSO Report

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS:
9) COUNCIL COMMENTS:
10) CONSENT AGENDA:

a) MINUTES
i. Minutes of the December 19, 2023, Regular City Council Meeting, discussion and action 

item:
11) NEW BUSINESS:

a) Resolution 24-01-16-01: Updating the Authorized  Signers on The City of Thorne Bay’s 
Tongass Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings And Gaming Accounts, discussion and 
action item;

b) Resolution 24-01-16-02: Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for FY24 Shared 
Fisheries Business Tax Program, discussion and action item;

c) Resolution 24-01-16-03: Accepting the Resignation of Councilman Oatman, discussion 
and possible action item;

d) Solid Waste Dump Tickets Low-Cost Spring Cleanup CY24, discussion and possible 
action item;

e) Authorizing Temporary Employment of Councilman Blair, for Snow/Ice Removal and 
Related Equipment  Maintenance, discussion and action item;

https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?
https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?%20MTID=mbc8920b66dc6b262b557723d050a5ae6


 p g .  2                A g e n d a  J a n  1 6 ,  2 0 2 4  R e g u l a r  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  

12) ORDINANCES FOR INTRODUCTION: 
a)  Ordinance 24-02-06-01: Title 2- Administration & Personnel, Chapter 02.04-City 

Council, Section 02.04.130-Meetings--Regular, Subsection (A) Day Of Meetings Held, 
discussion and action item; 

13) ORDINANCES FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 
14) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 
15) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 
16) ADJOURNMENT: 

POSTED: January 12, 2024 
 



MINUTES 
FOR THE REGULAR MEETING  

OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE  
CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2023 

TIME: 6: 30 p.m. 
THERE WAS A WORKSHOP BEGINNING AT 6:00PM 

 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Nyquest called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm 
 

2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
The audience and council stood for the pledge to the flag. 
 

3) ROLL CALL: 
Those present were:  
Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell, Kaer & Oatman.   
 

4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 

Burger moved to approve the agenda.  Hartwell seconded the motion.  There was no further discussion. 
 

MOTION: Move to approve the agenda 
F/S:  Nyquest/Hartwell 
YEAS:  Nyquest, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell, Kaer & Oatman 
NAYS:  None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 
 

 

5) MAYOR’S REPORT: 
Mayor Nyquest provided the following report: 

- Traveled this last week for the RUBA Utility Management Training.  It was very informative, and I was 
able to learn a lot, meet a lot of government officials, our Local Government Specialist. 

- Thank you, John for the sign, at the cutoff there at Rainy Lane. It was requested by a resident, and I 
appreciate that going up. 

- I wanted to provide my time to the public where they could come into City Hall and speak to me.  At 
this time January 8, 9, & 10, I will be in City Hall and available to the public.   

 
6) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 

a) City Administrator: 
John Huestis provided the following Administrator Report: 

- Working on typical fall/winter maintenance issues and special projects as required. 
- We now have the new power pole and meter box re-installed on the fire/ems hall and AP&T have 

reconnected the power to the building.   
- Work on the construction of new City bridges on the Kasaan Road has officially begun.  Some of 

OVK's new construction equipment showed up today on the barge.   
- Next meeting I hope to provide a brief for the Council on the activities and projects on the Kasaan 

Access Road and some of the history.   



- The City lot across from the Fire/EMS hall is currently being surveyed by Gary Tams of GT Land 
Surveying for Community Connections for future building considerations. If things look favorable, 
they will want to talk to you about building. 

- Project to repair leaking EMS/Fire Hall will focus on completion of training room, then rest of 
building. Goal is to have all work completed by early spring. Work should resume after Holidays.  

- Administration has made a pitch to the State of Alaska Mental Health Trust for a land swap. The 
state is discussing the concept, but it makes sense for the city for many reasons. Any decisions on 
the matter would of course be brought to the Council for approval. (See Handout) 

- I have been in communication with Atlas Tower about the possibility of leasing some City property.  
Discussion and resolution later in the meeting 

- We have been waiting to hear back on two grant applications that would supply funding for 
reconstruction of the first 5.4 miles of the Kasaan Road.  We heard back from RURAL and our project 
was not selected for funding. The State DOT has finally rescheduled their meeting and will be 
meeting tomorrow to discuss our other grant application for the same section of the road. It will 
still be some time after the meeting before we will know the final outcome but at least they finally 
are meeting. Funding is less than they first advertised though but we don't yet know how much. 

- We are preparing for wintertime maintenance activities such as plowing and sanding the roads as 
we expect to see some snow as early as later this week. 

- We received a letter from Pat Tierney about the seasonal No Parking on Rainy Lane. I had a follow-
up discussion with Pat and suggested we revisit the issue after the winter plowing and sanding 
season to see if there were areas where parking might be allowed where the road is wider. The 
council should be in receipt of this letter. 

 
b) City Clerk: 

The Clerk Report is attached to the minutes. 

7) DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
a) Water Operator Report 

Water Report is attached to the minutes. 

b) EMS Report 
Victoria Anderson EMS Coordinator provided the following EMS Report: 

- Thank you to all EMS Dispatchers, Drivers and Responders for giving up their time over the 
holidays. 

- I was looking at the EMS page on the City Website and it is extremely outdated.  
- Toys for Tots was a huge success. Thank you to the EMS personnel that helped to put that 

together.  Anyone needing toys, get with our EMS personnel and they will get you a gift. 
 

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 

Tom Cunningham commented on the following: 
- Read a memo from Elen Dillman, South Thorne Bay Resident, regarding a light needed at the 

entrance to South Thorne Bay.  
 
Gary Anderson  

- Received the same offer from Atlas Tower regarding the Cell Tower.  Canvass business owners to 
make sure you are not competing. 



- The City is receiving sales tax on bank fees, more than likely this is hurting the lowest income people 
in the community. 

- Suggested a Flat Penny Tax per gallon.  I brought this up last year and nothing was done, so I am 
bringing this up again.  

 

Tom Cunningham commented on the following: 
- Regarding the Voting issue at Davidson Landing.  Read a letter from Lori Wilson, Region I Elections 

Director.   
- Commented that the State’s voting format would be easy for the City to follow.  Stated he 

recommended that the City do that. 
 

9) COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Sean Kaer commented on the following: 

- Agreed with Thom Cunningham’s suggestion on having voting at Southside.  Received a lot of 
comments from the public regarding no voting there this last year.  

- Thank you to Gary and Victoria for all they have done.  Give them a lot of credit for what they have 
done with the EMS.  Nice Job Victoria for getting 20 volunteers. 

- Question from pre-covid, Klawock used our triage tents from Wrangell with intention to be used in 
case of emergencies in Thorne Bay. How do we work to get them returned to Thorne Bay? 

- Commented on the closed bridge at Tolstoi Bay, would like to see that back open to the public. 
- Cell Tower in Thorne Bay is a great idea.   
- Regarding the light at the Subdivision Turnoff.  I pay for my own streetlight, and we could get an LED 

light up for five dollars a month, or if its more, we could probably get a break on that.  
 

Robert Hartwell commented on the following: 
- Commented on the interest he had seen for putting the Lords Prayer onto the Agenda.  Stated that 

something like this should be done by an ordinance.  Should check with the attorney before doing 
that. 

Mayor Nyquest commented on the following: 
- I was the one who wanted the Prayer on the agenda.  I have checked with our LGS and found it 

should be an ordinance. 
Oatman commented on the following: 

- Questioned Gary Anderson about the location of the tower that Atlas Towers inquired, Anderson 
replied “at the Port” 

- Discussion followed on the importance of the Resolution to be passed versus going straight to a non-
code ordinace.  

Sean Kaer commented on the following: 
- Support Prayer, this country was founded on God. 
- Regarding the 5.5 miles of paving, Wale Pass and Thorne Bay were the two priorities for getting 

paving done. Not sure what happened, Wale Pass got theirs and Thorne Bay did not.   
- AP&T also wanted to run fiber optic on their way out to Kasaan, and that paperwork never got 

pushed through.   
 

 
10) CONSENT AGENDA: 



a) MINUTES 
i. Minutes of the November 14, 2023, Regular City Council Meeting, discussion and action item: 

 
Nyquest moved to approve the consent agenda, consisting of the November 14, 2023, Regular City Council 
Meeting.  
 
MOTION: Move to approve the consent agenda. 
F/S:  Nyquest / Hartwell   
YEAS:  Burger, Hartwell, Kaer Nyquest, Oatman, Lavoie & Blair 
NAYS:  None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 
 

11) NEW BUSINESS 
a) Resolution 23-12-19-01: A Resolution of the City of Thorne Bay Authorizing the Mayor and 

City Administrator to Negotiate Lease Terms with Atlas Towers, discussion and action item; 
Nyquest moved to approve Resolution 23-12-19-01, authorizing the Mayor and City Administrator to 
Negotiate Lease Terms with Atlas Towers.  Burger seconded the motion.   

Oatman inquired if there would be a public hearing before a lease was entered into?  Nyquest responded 
that it would be a Non-Code ordinance which requires a public hearing.   

MOTION: Move to approve Resolution 23-12-19-01, authorizing the Mayor and City Administrator to 
Negotiate Lease Terms with Atlas Towers 

F/S:  Nyquest/Burger   
YEAS:  Hartwell, Nyquest, Burger, Kaer, Oatman, Lavoie & Blair 
NAYS:  None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 
 

12) ORDINANCES FOR PUBLIC HEARING: None 
13) ORDINANCES FOR INTRODUCTION:  None 
14) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 

Thom Cunningham commented on the following: 
- Agree with Hartwell’s comments regarding separation of Church and State.  We give honor to God 

during the Pledge of Allegiance.   
Victoria Anderson commented on the following: 

- Responding to Seans question, the Tent was taken to Klawock because they were better equipped 
to care for it.  

Gary Anderson commented on the following: 
- Stated he believed the city made a mistake in that vote because you eliminate all negotiating power 

for any private person because the City has resources that they don’t. The City also gets 6% off of 
the top of anything  we think they were saying, so if you deal with them, I want 6%.   

Thom Cunningham commented on the following: 
- Regarding cell tower, doesn’t it give more coverage if you have higher elevation? If not, why not put 

it at Davidson’s Landing. 
 

 
15) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 



Mayor Nyquest commented on the following: 
- Prayer can be controversial and appreciate everyone’s concerns. With research, you’ll find 

historically all sessions were opened with prayer and people still do I today. If we don’t stand up as a 
people for what we believe in, people will eventually come in and say, “we don’t believe in your flag 
and I want you to stop pledging the flag” and we need to step up and say “No, we are going to do 
what’s right. People died for our right to stand up for what we believe in. Whether you believe in the 
Lord or not, we can still have the Lord’s Prayer and be ok. As mayor, I will make sure to the best of 
my ability that I do things legally and please as many people as I can. If you have been in this chair, 
you find out right away, you can’t please everyone. I’m going to do what’s right and please as many 
people as I can.  

Hartwell stated he spent 4 and a half years of life defending that flag and would die before they take that 
from him.  
Kaer comments on the following: 
Thank you to everyone for their service.  
Address Gary’s concerns about the Tower negotiations to clarify intentions behind his vote cast.  
 

16) ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Nyquest adjourned the meeting at          7:35pm        
 

__________________________ 
Shane Nyquest, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk/Treasurer  
 
 

 



 pg. 1                Resolution 21-01-16-01 Amending City Bank Signers 

 
 
 

 

CITY OF THORNE BAY 
RESOLUTION 24-01-16-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, UPDATING THE 
AUTHORIZED  SIGNERS ON THE CITY OF THORNE BAY’S TONGASS FEDERAL 

CREDIT UNION CHECKING, SAVINGS AND GAMING ACCOUNTS. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is the governing body of Thorne Bay, Alaska; and 

WHEREAS, The Tongass Federal Credit Union Gaming Account Signers have not been updated in 
several years; and 

WHEREAS, Dana Allison and Lisa Roseland are no longer employed with the City of Thorne Bay; and 

WHEREAS, Caitlyn Sawyer was appointed City Clerk and Treasurer on January 9, 2023, Shane Nyquest 
was elected Mayor November, 2023, Rose Mathis was hired June 12, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby updates the authorized signers for the City of Thorne Bay’s Tongass 
Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings, and Gaming Accounts by adopting the following 
amendments: 

 
 

TONGASS FEDERAL GAMING ACCOUNT: 
Removal of Authorized Signers: 

a. Dana Allison 
b. Lisa Roseland 
c. Teri Feibel 

2) Addition of Authorized Signer: 
a. Caitlyn Sawyer 
b. Shane Nyquest 
c. Rose Mathis  

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City of Thorne Bay hereby approves 
the following named as account signers for the City of Thorne Bay’s Tongass Federal Credit Union 
Checking, Savings, and Gaming Accounts. 

 
 

Hearing:    January 16, 2024  
Vote:     Yeas, _  Nays, __ Absent 



 pg. 2                Resolution 21-01-16-01 Amending City Bank Signers 

TONGASS FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 
Checking & Savings      Gaming Account 
• Shane Nyquest               Caitlyn Sawyer 
• Jeffrey ‘Bubba’ Oatman        Shane Nyquest 
• John Huestis          Rose Mathis 
• Caitlyn Sawyer  
• Rose Mathis 
• Teri Feibel  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on 16th day of January 2024 
 

         ________________________ 
  ATTEST:        Shane Nyquest, Mayor 
 

Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk/Treasurer 



  
RESOLUTION 24-01-16-02  

CITY OF THORNE BAY  
  

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD FOR THE FY24 SHARED 
FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM AND CERTIFYING THAT THIS ALLOCATION METHOD FAIRLY 
REPRESENTS THE DISTRIBUTION OF SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS OF FISHERIES BUSINESS ACTIVITY IN 

FMA 19: SOUTHERN SOUTHEAST AREA  
  

 
WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY24 Shared Fisheries 
Business Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development that the municipality suffered significant effects during 
calendar year 2022 from fisheries business activities; and,  
  
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.060 provides for the allocation of available program funding to eligible 
municipalities located within fisheries management areas specified by the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development; and,  
  
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.070 provides for the use, at the discretion of the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development, of alternative allocation methods which may be used 
within fisheries management areas if all eligible municipalities agree to use the method, and the 
method incorporates some measure of the relative significant effect of fisheries business activity 
on the respective municipalities in the area; and,  
  
WHEREAS, The City of Thorne Bay proposes to use an alternative allocation method for allocation 
of FY24 funding available within the FMA 19: Southern Southeast Area in agreement with all other 
municipalities in this area participating in the FY24 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program;  
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Thorne Bay City Council by this resolution certifies 
that the following alternative allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant 
effects during 2022 of fisheries business activity in FMA 19, Southern Southeast Area:  

• All municipalities share equally 50% of allocation; all municipalities share remaining 
50% on a per capita basis.  

• Ketchikan Gateway Borough population is reduced by the Resolution of the Cities of 
Ketchikan and Saxman  

  
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duty constituted quorum of the City Council, for the City of Thorne 
Bay on this 16th day of January 2024.       
  

_____________________________  
ATTEST         Shane Nyquest, Mayor    
  
  

  ______________________________   
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk/Treasurer  





 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF THORNE BAY 
RESOLUTION 24-01-16-03 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ACCEPTING THE 

RESIGNATION OF COUNCILMAN JEFFREY OATMAN, FROM COUNCIL SEAT D 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is the governing body of Thorne Bay, Alaska; and 
 

WHEREAS, Councilman Oatman notified the City Clerk on January 12th. 2024 of his desire 
to terminate his elected position; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is Councilman Jeffrey Oatman’s desire to terminate his elected position as 
Council member for Seat E of the Thorne Bay City Council.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Thorne Bay, Alaska, 
hereby acknowledges and accepts Councilman Jeffrey Oatman’s desire to terminate his 
elected position as Council member for Seat E of the Thorne Bay City Council.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the City Council on this 16th, 
day of January 2024. 
 

________________________________ 
ATTEST:          Shane Nyquest, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 
 

Sponsor:  Mayor Shane Nyquest 
Adoption:  January 16, 2024   . . 
Vote:          Yeas, ___ Nays,  ___ Absent 



Numbers for the 2023 Dump Coupons: 

• 135 sold for $10 each (income $1350.00) 
• 35 tickets were unused. 
• 100 tickets used for a total weight of: 63,350lbs. 
• If dumped with no coupon,  $6,353.00 would have been collected.  (63350 x .10 cents = 

$6,335.00). 

 

Numbers from Previous Year (2022) 

• 160 Sold at $10 each (income $1,600.00) 
• 65 tickets unused 
• 95 coupons used for a total weight of: 58,882lbs. 
• If dumped with no coupon, $5888.20 would have been collected.  

 

 

Would the City Council like to offer cleanup coupons again in 2024, and if so, will there be any 
changes?  

 

 



COUPON
NUMBER

Date 
Bought

TOTAL 
WEIGHT DATE USED

2334 03/10/23 135 sold $10 each = $1350
2335 03/10/23 980 35 unused
2327 02/11/23 1100 02/11/23 100 used total weight: 63,530 lbs

231 01/18/23 760 05/24/23 no coupon income: (63,530x.1) $6,353.00
232 01/18/23
233 01/19/23 1000 01/19/23
234 01/19/23 460 02/08/23
235 01/26/23 1000 02/18/23
236 01/25/23 980 02/09/23
237 01/30/23 240 12/29/23
238 02/01/23 890 03/09/23
239 02/01/23 350 02/04/23

2310 02/01/23 210 06/17/23
2311 02/01/23 320 12/29/23
2312 02/02/23
2313 02/02/23
2314 02/03/23 760 06/08/23
2315 02/03/23 370 12/23/23
2316 02/03/23 800 04/20/23
2317 02/03/23 710 04/27/23
2318 02/06/23
2319 02/06/23
2320 02/07/23
2321 02/07/23
2322 02/07/23
2323 02/07/23
2324 02/08/23 370 10/28/23
2325 02/08/23
2326 02/09/23 280 07/21/23
2328 02/23/23 390 02/23/23
2329
2330 03/03/23
2331 03/03/23 660 04/07/23
2332 03/10/23
2333 03/10/23 150 09/08/23
2336 03/14/23 1000 03/16/23
2337 03/14/23
2338 03/21/23 280 11/16/23
2339 03/21/23 720 07/15/23
2340 03/21/23
2341 03/21/23
2342 03/24/23 810 03/25/23
2343 03/24/23 920 03/24/23
2344 03/24/23 410 06/02/23



2345 03/24/23 490 07/13/23
2346 03/24/23
2347 04/03/23 540 11/03/23
2348 04/03/23 600 07/07/23
2349 04/04/23 160 08/11/23
2350 04/04/23 540 06/03/23
2351 04/05/23 450 06/22/23
2352 04/11/23
2353 04/11/23 690 06/17/23
2354 04/19/23
2355 04/20/23 290 05/26/23
2356 04/26/23 240 05/04/23
2357 04/26/23 230 07/27/23
2358 04/28/23 710 04/29/23
2359 04/28/23 470 06/24/23
2360 05/11/23 920 06/16/23
2361 05/11/23 1000 08/12/23
2362 05/11/23 850 05/20/23
2363 05/16/23 660 11/09/23
2364 05/16/23 850 07/19/23
2365 05/17/23 270 05/18/23
2366 05/18/23 980 05/26/23
2367 05/18/23 730 12/29/23
2368 05/23/23 1000 10/06/23
2369 05/23/23 1000 10/06/23
2370 05/24/23 790 09/07/23
2371 05/24/23 1000 09/07/23
2372 05/25/23 740 05/25/23
2373 05/26/23 820 08/11/23
2374 5/26/233 710 05/26/23
2375 05/30/23 150 12/16/23
2376 05/30/23 360 09/08/23
2377 05/31/22 600 06/03/23
2378 06/01/23 1000 08/03/23
2379 06/01/23 920 11/30/23
2380 06/02/23
2381 06/05/23 470 06/30/23
2382 06/05/23 830 06/23/23
2383 06/07/23
2384 06/07/23
2385 06/08/23
2386 06/08/23
2387 06/14/23
2388 06/14/23 1000 06/15/23
2389 06/14/23
2390 06/14/23
2391 06/15/23 970 06/15/23

2392 06/23/23 600 06/24/23
2393 06/23/23 850 11/30/23
2394 06/26/23 990 08/18/23
2395 06/26/23 990 08/12/23
2396 06/27/23 190 11/16/23
2397 06/27/23 270 09/29/23
2398 06/28/23 780 06/29/23
2399 06/28/23 270 07/01/23

23100 07/06/23
23101 07/06/23 720 08/18/23
23102 07/06/23 470 07/06/23
23103 07/07/23 140 07/07/23
23104 07/10/23 230 07/13/23
23105 07/17/23
23106 07/17/23 920 09/30/23
23107 07/19/23 280 12/20/23
23108 07/19/23 1000 07/22/23
23109 07/27/23
23110 08/04/23 270 08/05/23
23111 08/07/23 1000 08/19/23
23112 08/07/23 710 12/29/23
23113 08/16/23 970 08/17/23
23114 08/16/23 370 10/14/23
23115 08/16/23
23116 08/22/23 60 08/25/23
23117 08/22/23
23118 08/23/23 1000 08/24/23
23119 08/23/23 1000 08/24/23
23120 08/29/23 990 11/09/23
23121 08/29/23
23122 09/06/23 290 12/09/23
23123 09/06/23 1000 09/08/23
23124 09/11/23
23125 09/11/23
23126 09/27/23 450 9/28/2023
23127 09/27/23 940 11/04/23
23128 09/27/23 1000 09/23/23
23129 09/27/23 1000 09/23/23
23130 09/28/23 310 12/08/23
23131 09/28/23 450 10/20/23
23132 10/20/23 720 12/30/23
23133 10/20/23 700 11/25/23
23134 10/26/23 280 11/18/23
23135 11/09/23 550 11/09/23
23136 11/16/23 520 11/16/23
23137 12/05/23 280 12/09/23

63530



Spring Clean Up Time – Pick Your Own Day with Solid Waste Coupons 
 

THORNE BAY RESIDENTS ……..It is  Clean Up time! 
 

For calendar year 2024 we are again offering Thorne Bay residents the opportunity to purchase 
coupons at $10.00 per 1,000# of Solid Waste Disposal.  The coupon(s) will allow residents the 
ability to pick their own personal clean-up day! 

To purchase your coupons, stop by Thorne Bay City Hall and bring your ID, proof of residence 
and $10 cash per coupon.  (There is a limit of 2 coupons per residence)   

• Sales for 2024 coupons will begin on Monday, January 22, 2024 at Thorne Bay City Hall,               
• City Hall is OPEN Mon-Thurs 9am-4pm & Friday 9-noon 
• Coupons are non-refundable and non-transferrable. 
• There is a limit of 2 coupons per residence.  
• Coupons will EXPIRE 12/31/2024.  No exception. 
• Each coupon is good for 1000# on one calendar day. 
 Multiple loads which total up to 1000# per coupon/per calendar day are acceptable.  
 Anything over the coupon limit of 1000# will be charged regular rates. 
• The resident purchasing the coupons, or their pre-authorized designee MUST be 

present when dropping off their load(s) at the landfill. 

We do request that each load be sorted into the following:  

 WHITE GOODS AND SCRAP METAL (Washer, Dryers, Ranges, etc.) 
 CLEAN BURNABLE MATERIAL (Wood, Paper, etc.) 
 NON-BURNABLE MATERIAL (Plastics, Styrofoam, Sheetrock, Rope, etc.) 
 HOUSEHOLD WASTE (Garbage that is normally picked up in a garbage can.  
 Up to 4 residential tires ARE allowed. 

Coupons cannot be used for vehicles of any type, commercial tires, or hazardous materials.    

Simple Process 

• Purchase coupons at City of Thorne Bay, City Hall    
• Present coupon at Landfill upon entry at scale house. **The coupon purchaser or pre-

authorized designee must be present when dropping off loads at the landfill.  
• If multiple trips will be made, advise the attendant on your initial stop.  

 
Landfill Hours of Operation 

Thursday – Saturday           9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
 

 



 

Page | 1 of 3                                                                                Ordinance 24-02-06-01; Amending 2.04.130  

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF THORNE BAY  
ORDINANCE 24-02-06-01 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, AMENDING 

TITLE 2- ADMINISTRATION & PERSONNEL, CHAPTER 02.04-CITY COUNCIL, SECTION 
02.04.130-MEETINGS--REGULAR, SUBSECTION (A) DAY OF MEETINGS HELD.   

 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA  

 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature, the chapter 
and section hereby amended shall be added to the Thorne Bay Municipal Code. 

 

 
Section 2. Purpose.  The purpose of this ordinance is to amend meetings days from the first 

and third Tuesdays to the first Tuesday with the option to schedule a second 
meeting on the third Tuesday.   

 
Section 3. Amendment of Section.  The title and chapter of Title 02 Administration and 

Personnel, Chapter 02.04 City Council, Section 02.04.130 (A)-Meetings – Regular, 
is hereby amended and shall read as provided herein this ordinance. 

 
 

Section 4. Severability.  If any provisions of this ordinance or any application thereof to any 
person or circumstances is held invalid, the circumstances shall not be affected 
thereby. 

 
 

Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED February 6, 2024 
 
 

__________________________ 
    Shane Nyquest, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk Treasurer 
 
 

Introduction: January 16, 2024 . 
Public Hearing:  February 6, 2024  
Sponsor: Mayor Shane Nyquest 
Vote:        Yeas, _ _ Nays, __ Absent 



 

Page | 2 of 3                                                                                Ordinance 24-02-06-01; Amending 2.04.130  

ADDITIONS ARE IN BLUE AND CAPITALIZED 
Deletions are red and stricken 

 

AMENDMENT OF TITLE, CHAPTER & SECTION: 

TITLE 02- Administration and Personnel  
CHAPTER 02.04 – CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS SHALL BE ADDED TO THE THORNE BAY MUNICIPAL CODE AS 

PROVIDED IN THIS ORDINANCE 

2.04.130 MEETINGS--REGULAR.  
A. ONE regular council meetings shall be held on the first and third Tuesdays of each 

month, WITH AN ADDITIONAL MEETING ON THE THIRD TUESDAY AS 
NEEDED. Either THIS meeting may be rescheduled for cause, but two ONE 
monthly meetings shall be held, unless one is cancelled by the majority vote of the 
City Council.  

B. Regular council meetings shall be held at City Hall unless that meeting place is 
unavailable in which case the meeting may be held at another location designated 
by the council presiding officer. (Ord. 04-06-17-01 §4, 2004; Ord. 90-24 §5(part), 
1990) 

 
 
 
 

 


	Agenda - Jan 16 2024
	LOCATION: IN PERSON AT CITY HALL or TELECONFERENCE/VIDEO CONFERENCING LINE
	11) NEW BUSINESS:
	a)  Resolution 24-01-16-01: Updating the Authorized  Signers on The City of Thorne Bay’s Tongass Federal Credit Union Checking, Savings And Gaming Accounts, discussion and action item;
	b)  Resolution 24-01-16-02: Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for FY24 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program, discussion and action item;
	c)  Resolution 24-01-16-03: Accepting the Resignation of Councilman Oatman, discussion and possible action item;
	d)  Solid Waste Dump Tickets Low-Cost Spring Cleanup CY24, discussion and possible action item;
	e)  Authorizing Temporary Employment of Councilman Blair, for Snow/Ice Removal and Related Equipment  Maintenance, discussion and action item;
	15) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT:

	Resolution 24-01-16-01 Amending City Bank Signers
	Resolution 24-01-16-02 Shared Fisheries
	FY24 Fisheries Business Tax allocation
	RESOLUTION 24-01-16-03 ACCEPTING RESIGNATION OF COUNCILMAN OATMAN.pdf
	Numbers for the 2023 Dump Coupons
	SOLID WASTE COUPON TALLY
	Sheet2

	Solid Waste Coupons - Flier
	Simple Process
	Landfill Hours of Operation

	Ordinance 24-02-06-01 AMENDING TITLE 02.04.130
	2.04.130 MEETINGS--REGULAR.




